
To: Members of the General Executive Board 
From: Members of the Independent Review Board 
Re: Proposed Charges Concerning Mario Perrucci, 

International Vice President and 
Local 177 Secretary-Treasurer 

Date: July 12, 1995 

I. RECOMMENDATION 
The members of the Independent Review Board recommend to 

the General Executive Board that charges be filed against Mario 
Perrucci for both bringing reproach upon the IBT and accepting a 
thing of value from an employer in violation of applicable law. 
Perrucci obtained a 23-foot boat with an inboard/outboard motor 
from an employer having a collective bargaining agreement with 
Local 177 and which sponsored an ERISA fund for which Perrucci was 
a Trustee for $100 in cash when this boat's value at the time of 
transfer was, at lease, between $2,900 and $4,900. By purchasing 
this boat for substantially less than the fair market value, 
Perrucci appears to have violated Article II, Section 2(a) and 
Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and (13) of the IBT 
Constitution.* 

In addition, from approximately 1979 through 1990, 
Perrucci received free personal tax preparation work from the 
accountant for the Local and the Local 177 Pension Fund. Moreover, 
from approximately 1979 to 1994, Perrucci received free Yankee 

* Article XIX, Section 7(b)(13) provides that charges may be 
brought against IBT officers for "Accepting money or other things 
of value from any employer or any agent of an employer, in 
violation of applicable law." 



baseball season tickets from the attorney for the Local and the 
Local 177 Pension Fund which tickets he could use as he pleased. 
As discussed below, Perrucci's personal assistant, Ralph Turano, 
distributed the Yankee tickets without any formal mechanism for 
their distribution. By receiving gifts from both the accountant 
and the attorney for the Local and the Local 177 Pension Fund, 
Perrucci brought reproach upon the IBT and appears to have violated 
Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and 
(13) of the IBT Constitution. 

II. SUMMARY OF INVESTIGATION 
Mario Perrucci has been a member of Local 177 since 

September 1966 and has been an elected officer of Local 177 since 
November 1977. Local 177 is located in Hillside, New Jersey and 
has approximately 8,000 members. The majority of Local 177 members 
are United Parcel Service Company employees. (Ex. 1 at 3,4) 
Perrucci has been the Secretary-Treasurer and principal officer of 
Local 177 since January 1, 1978. Since February 1, 1992, Perrucci 
has been an International Vice President and the Director of the 
Small Parcel and Package Division of the IBT. 

Perrucci is the business agent for Joseph Eletto 
Transfer Inc. ("Eletto Transfer"), a trucking company delivering 
furniture for Macy's Department Store warehouse located in Raritan, 



New Jersey. In 1991, Eletto Transfer underbid Tri Power Trucking, 
a company with a Local 177 collective bargaining agreement at the 
Raritan warehouse. (Ex. 20 at 8-10) Eletto Transfer had a 
collective bargaining agreement with Local 875 to cover employees 
of Eletto Transfer in New York. According to Perrucci, Joseph 
Eletto, the owner of Eletto Transfer, tried to have the employees 
of the Raritan warehouse represented by IBT Local 875 located in 
Queens, New York. Perrucci challenged Local 875's jurisdiction 
over the Raritan warehouse and was successful in obtaining Local 
177 jurisdiction over this warehouse. (Ex. 2 at 6-9) 

Perrucci described his relationship with Joseph Eletto as 
"stormy." (Ex. 2 at 9) In 1992, they ultimately negotiated a 
collective bargaining agreement. (Ex. 2 at 8-9) This collective 
bargaining agreement was for the period September 29, 1991 through 
August 31, 1994. In or about August 1994, this collective 
bargaining agreement was extended until February 28, 1995 allegedly 
due to a projected merger between Macy's and Federated Stores Inc. 
that made Eletto's status at Macy's uncertain. (Exs. 3-6) As of 
May 10, 1995, the date of his sworn examination, Perrucci testified 
that the extended September 1991-August 1994 collective bargaining 
agreement between Local 177 and Eletto Transfer was still in 
effect. (Ex. 2 at 13) 

According to the documents filed with the Department of 
Labor, in 1992 and 1993 Joseph Eletto was the employer/plan sponsor 
of the Department Store Drivers, Warehousemen and Helpers Local 177 
Union Pension Fund ("Local 177 Pension Fund"). (Exs. 13 and 14) 



When Joseph Eletto died in December 1993, his son, John Eletto, 
became the employer/plan sponsor of the Local 177 Pension Fund. 
(Ex. 14) In 1992 and 1993, Perrucci was a union Trustee to the 
Local 177 Pension Fund. (Exs. 13 and 14) 

Richard Carunchio, currently a Local 177 Trustee and 
business agent, is currently a Trustee on the Local 177 Pension 
Fund. (Ex. 21 at 15-16)3 Carunchio testified that Perrucci is 
currently a Trustee on the Local 177 Pension Fund and John Eletto 
is currently the employer Trustee. (Ex. 21 at 16)̂  

Edward T. O'Neill, a Local 177 member and Shop Steward at 
Eletto Transfer, testified that Eletto Transfer took over the 
furniture delivery for Macy's Department Stores in New Jersey in 
1991 from Tri Power Trucking. (Ex. 20 at 8-10)' O'Neill testified 
that when Tri Power Trucking employed the Local 177 members at the 
Macy's warehouse, the employees earned over $6.00 per stop and were 
guaranteed eighteen stops a day. (Ex. 20 at 23)* Under the Eletto 

2 Carunchio became a Trustee on the Local 177 Pension Fund in 
1992. (Ex. 13; Ex. 21 at 15-16) 

^ According to Carunchio, there is only one employer Trustee 
on the Local 177 Pension Fund. (Ex. 21 at 17) 

* According to O'Neill, initially Joseph Eletto did not want 
to have a collective bargaining agreement with Local 177. Eletto 
wanted to put the Local 177 employees at the Edison facility into 
Local 875 IBT, which represented Eletto Transfer's employees in the 
Elmhurst, New York facility. Perrucci had to assert Local 177's 
jurisdiction over the Edison facility and eventually won over Local 
875 at the Eastern Conference in 1992. (Ex. 20 at 8-10) 

* O'Neill testified that Eletto Transfer has ten or eleven 
Local 177 members employed at their Edison facility. According to 
O'Neill, Eletto Transfer uses eight to ten owner operators on a 
weekly basis and up to thirty owner operators a week in peak 



Transfer collective bargaining agreement with Local 177 effective 
between September 1991 and August 1994, the Local 177 drivers 
received $5.75 per stop and were guaranteed sixteen stops a day. 
(Ex. 3 at 13)' 

According to O'Neill, Tri Power Trucking paid $40 per 
employee per week into the Local 177 Pension Fund. (Ex. 20 at 22) 
According to the 1991-1994 collective bargaining agreement between 
Local 177 and Eletto Transfer, Eletto Transfer made a maximum 
weekly contribution of $32 per employee to the Local 177 Pension 
Plan. (Ex. 20 at 22) According to a July 7, 1995 letter from 
counsel for Local 177, in the most recent collective bargaining 
negotiations between Eletto Transfer and Local 177, Eletto Transfer 
agreed to a maximum weekly pension fund contribution of $40 per 
employee. (Ex. 29)̂  

Richard Carunchio, a union Trustee of the Local 177 
Pension Fund, testified that he and his fellow Local 177 officers, 
business agents and office employees are also participants in this 
pension plan. (Ex. 21 at 16-19) According to counsel for Local 
177, Local 177 currently contributes $48 per employee per week into 

seasons. According to O'Neill, the owner operators are paid in the 
low $30 range per stop but have to pay all their expenses out of 
this flat rate. O'Neill also testified that the owner operators 
have to join Local 177 and pay dues but Eletto Transfer makes no 
contributions on their behalf to any Local 177 benefit fund. (Ex. 
20 at 12-14, 22) 

' Effective September 1, 1994, the Local 177 members employed 
by Eletto Transfer were paid approximately $6.44 per stop. (Ex. 3 
at 13 and Ex. 6) 

^ To date no collective bargaining agreement has been signed 
reflecting this agreement. (Ex. 29) 



the Local 177 Pension Fund. (Ex. 29) During his June 1995 sworn 
examination, Carunchio identified Eletto Transfer and Huffman Koos 
Furniture Stores as the other two employers currently making 
contributions to the Local 177 Pension Fund on behalf of their 
Local 177 employees. (Ex. 21 at 16-19) According to counsel for 
Local 177, Huffman Koos pays $1.12 per hour per employee into this 
pension fund for a maximum of forty hours per week. As a result, 
Huffman Koos' maximum weekly contribution rate is $44.80. (Ex. 29) 

A. Perrucci's Boat 
Through the New Jersey Division of Motor Vehicles it was 

determined that Perrucci owns a 1986 Bayliner 23-foot boat. This 
boat was registered to Perrucci as of May 4, 1994. This boat has 
the New Jersey registration number NJ4326FX and has the Vehicle 
Identification Number (VIN) BPIA8 8SRA6 86.' (Ex. 7) The certified 
copy of title for this boat reflected a gross sales price of $100 
and that $6.00 in sales tax was paid on the date the boat was 
registered in New Jersey. (Ex. 7) 

Information provided by the New York Motor Vehicle 
Division reflected that since January 27, 1988 a 24-foot Bayliner 
Fiberglass boat with Hull number BPIA88SRA686 was registered to 
Eletto Transfer. This boat was last re-registered to Eletto 
Transfer as of December 9, 1993 and the expiration date of this 
registration is December 1996. (Ex. 8) This boat has the same hull 

* The VIN on boats is also referred to as the Manufacturer's 
Hull number. 



number as Perrucci's boat. (Ex. 7) 
This boat has a 260 horsepower Volvo engine and is in the 

1986 Ciera model number 2450 class. (Ex. 7) Official records give 
the length of this boat as 23 foot or 24 foot in length. The 
variance is attributable to the boat's actual length of 23 foot, 
eight inches. (Ex. 9) 

The 1995 edition of the Anderson Boggs Outboard Services 
("ABOS") Marine Blue Book lists the model 2450 Ciera Sportscruiser 
with a 260 Volvo engine as having a 1986 list price of $21,295. 
According to the Marine Blue Book, the minimum suggested 1995 
trade-in value on this craft is listed as $8,518 and the maximum 
trade-in value is $10,435. According to the 1995 Marine Blue Book, 
the suggested current retail price on a boat in this class is 
listed as $13,044. (Ex. 9)* 

Perrucci testified that he did not have a good 
relationship with Joseph Eletto while he was the owner of Eletto 
Transfer. In December 1993, Joseph Eletto died and Perrucci sent 
flowers and made a condolence visit to his wake. (Ex. 2 at 10) 

In February or March 1994, Perrucci met with John Eletto, 
the son of Joseph Eletto, who replaced his father as the owner of 
Eletto Transfer. Perrucci testified that during this meeting he 
and John Eletto "had some discussions on business. There were some 
problems with Health and Welfare." (Ex. 2 at 9-12) According to 

* In the April 27, 1995 edition of The Boat Shopper, a bi-
weekly new and used boat advertisement magazine, a 24 foot 1986 
Bayliner Bowrider with a 225 horsepower engine (never bottom 
painted) was listed for a $10,900 sales price. (Ex. 12) 



Perrucci, John Eletto told him that he was having trouble settling 
part of his father's estate, particularly disposing his father's 
"toys." John Eletto said these toys included a Rolls Royce, a 
Mercedes and a boat. Perrucci testified that he told John Eletto 
that he had lived on the water for ten to twelve years and had 
always been interested in owning a boat. (Ex. 2 at 11) According 
to Perrucci, John Eletto offered Perrucci the boat for free but 
Perrucci insisted that he had to pay a price for the boat. (Ex. 2 
at 11-12) Perrucci testified that they agreed on a price of $100 
which Perrucci paid John Eletto in cash. (Ex. 2 at 12) 

Perrucci provided the Chief Investigator a bill of sale 
dated March 10, 1994 for the 1986 Bayliner Ciera Bowrider Model 
2450. (Ex. 21) This bill of sale stated, "Condition: As Is", 
listed a sale price of $100 and identified the seller as John 
Eletto. (Ex. 23a) This document contained a handwritten note which 
stated that the bill of sale was "Mailed to Local 177, Att: Mario 
Perrucci, 38 Main Street Toms River N.J.." (Ex. 23a)*° 

Perrucci described this boat as a 23 foot Bayliner 
Bowrider. (Ex. 2 at 5) According to Perrucci, John Eletto told him 
that there were problems with the boat and Perrucci was buying it 
on an "as is" basis. Perrucci claimed that the boat did not have 
a trailer and he had to pay $500 to transport the boat from a Long 
Island, New York marina to Bob's Outboard marina in Brigantine, New 

Local 177 office employee Ralph Turano ("Turano") testified 
that he first became aware that Perrucci had a boat in the Spring 
of 1994. According to Turano, Perrucci told him that he had 
purchased a boat from Eletto Transfer for $100 and a few days later 
showed Turano a bill of sale for the boat. (Ex. 22 at 9-10) 



Jersey. (Ex. 2 at 10-12)" Bob's Outboard marina is approximately 
one mile from Perrucci's home. 

Perrucci testified that the boat has been on land more 
than it has been in the water. Since the purchase, Perrucci 
claimed "I have thrown about 25 or $2,600 into it [the boat]." (Ex. 
2 at 12)" Perrucci stated that after a June 19, 1994 fire on the 
boat, which is discussed below, he had to pay $2,200 to rebuild the 
engine in this craft. (Ex. 2 at 17)" Perrucci also testified that 
he only has liability insurance on this boat. (Ex. 2 at 12, 27) 
Perrucci testified that he has no insurance for the value of the 
boat and explained that the liability insurance only cost 

" Perrucci provided the Chief Investigator with a bill of 
lading from Lighthouse Boat Transport Inc., 710 South Wellwood 
Avenue, Lindenhurst, New York for transportation of a 24 foot 
Bayliner on May 6, 1994 from Port Washington, New York to 2005 
Revere Boulevard, Brigantine, New Jersey, for a charge of $493.50. 
(Ex. 23e) This address is Perrucci's home. 

During his June 1995 sworn examination, Eletto Transfer 
shop steward O'Neill testified that he first learned that Perrucci 
received a boat from Eletto Transfer when he called Perrucci after 
receiving the IRB's sworn examination notice on or about May 20, 
1995. (Ex. 20 at 35; Ex. 30) O'Neill testified that during his 
conversation with Perrucci, Perrucci told O'Neill that he received 
a boat from Eletto Transfer but did not tell O'Neill how much he 
paid for the boat. According to O'Neill, Perrucci told O'Neill 
that he was putting "good money into bad" into the boat and told 
O'Neill that it was the "sorriest thing he ever did." (Ex. 20 at 
34,35) 

" Perrucci provided a June 1, 1995 declaration from Robert W. 
Macready, the owner of Bob's Outboard Marine. This declaration 
included two repair/maintenance bills from Bob's Outboard to 
Perrucci. (Ex. 23h) The first bill was for $2,094.83 and was 
dated August 16, 1994. The second bill dated November 15, 1994 was 
for winterizing and storage. In his declaration, Macready stated 
that he billed Perrucci for $2,094.83 in repair work to Perrucci's 
boat. Macready also stated that he took the boat out of water and 
winterized it for safe winter storage. (Ex. 23h, 23i and 23j) 



approximately $100 a year. (Ex. 2 at 12)** On May 11, 1995, at 
Bob's Outboard, West Shore Drive, Brigantine, New Jersey 
photographs were taken of Perrucci's boat. (Ex. 10 a-g) 

Perrucci testified that in June 1994 he took the boat 
into the ocean near Atlantic City, New Jersey to see what was wrong 
with it. Perrucci testified that his six-month old grandchild was 
on board the boat when he took it out into the ocean to determine 
if there were problems with the boat. (Ex. 2 at 17) During this 
trip, there was a fire on the boat. The Coast Guard responded 
which resulted in the boat being towed to Bob's Marina. According 
to the United States Coast Guard incident report concerning their 
response to Perrucci's boat fire, on June 19, 1994 the Coast Guard 
responded to a fire distress radio message from the Annabelle. 
According to that report, when two Coast Guard vessels reached the 
scene, the Annabelle, with New Jersey registration NJ4326FX, was 
drifting into the beach. The smaller Coast Guard vessel towed the 
Annabelle away from the beach to the larger Coast Guard vessel 
which towed the boat to a state marina. According to that report, 
the owner of the boat, Mario Perrucci, told the Coast Guard that 
there had been a fire in the engine of this boat. The fire was out 
when the Coast Guard reached the boat. (Ex. 11) The Coast Guard 
report on towing Perrucci's boat listed a total of five persons 
aboard. (Ex. 11) 

Perrucci provided a copy of his homeowner insurance policy 
dated June 29, 1994 which showed liability coverage for a 
watercraft for an annual $19 premium charge. (Ex. 23d) 

10 



The severity of the damage was described on the Coast 
Guard incident report as moderate; however, the boat was disabled 
from a loss of power. According to the incident report, the Coast 
Guard then towed the boat to the New Jersey State Marina in that 
area. (Ex. 11) The Coast Guard report contained an "Incident Data 
Sheet" which included a section headed "Impact on Property." In 
the report concerning Perrucci's boat, a $10,000 value was listed 
under the heading "Impact on Property." (Ex. 11) According to 
Chief Kavanaugh of the United States Coast Guard Station in 
Brigantine, New Jersey, the Coast Guard member who assisted 
Perrucci's boat listed under the heading "Impact on Property" his 
estimation of the value of Perrucci's boat. (Ex. 28) 

In late May 1995, the Chief Investigator's Office 
attempted to contact John Eletto to interview him regarding the 
circumstances of the sale of this boat to Mario Perrucci. On May 
31, 1995, Eletto's attorney, James Fletcher, contacted the Chief 
Investigator's Office and requested a letter outlining the 
information the Chief Investigator's Office desired from his 
client. On May 31, 1995 the requested letter was sent to Mr. 
Fletcher. (Ex. 17) 

By letter dated June 2, 1995 (Ex. 18), Fletcher responded 
to this request enclosing an unsigned, undated statement which 
reads as follows: 

On December 11, 1993, my father was in North 
Shore University Hospital. He knew that within 
twenty-four hours he would be gone. On this day 
he spoke to me about the position I must assume 
and the things he wanted me to complete for him. 
As this conversation ended, my father said to sell 

11 



his two Rolls Royces, they should not be around 
the house without him. My father's last sentence 
to me was "and get rid of that F boat." 
At a lunch with Mario, who got to know my father well, 
I was telling him this story. Mario inquired about 
the boat and I said I would not sell the boat to a 
friend, the boat was a disaster. I told him to take 
this boat in memory of my father. He refused and 
said he could not take it. We made a deal, that he 
would buy the boat for $100.00, he would ship it to 
Tom's River and he would make whatever repairs 
necessary. I made Mario swear that no matter what 
the boat cost him, it would not effect our friendship. 

(Ex. 19) 
Local 177 Trustee and Business Agent Carunchio testified 

that he heard in the summer of 1994 that Perrucci had purchased a 
boat. (Ex. 21 at 10) Carunchio did not remember if Perrucci told 
him where Perrucci had purchased the boat. According to Carunchio, 
Perrucci told Carunchio that he had a lot of trouble with the boat 
and put a lot of money into the boat. (Ex. 21 at 10-14) 

B. Value of Perrucci's Boat 
The Chief Investigator's Office hired Paul Robinson 

("Robinson"), an accredited marine surveyor, to inspect Perrucci's 
boat to provide an expert opinion of its fair market value. 
Robinson has previously testified in state court as a expert in the 
field of boat appraisals. (Ex. 24) On June 29, 1995, Robinson 
inspected Perrucci's boat. (Ex. 25) 

After this inspection, Robinson advised that Perrucci's 
boat was in an overall "Fair" condition. After taking into 
consideration the condition of Perrucci's boat, Robinson reported 
that the fair market value of the boat in 1994 would have been 

12 



$4,900. (Ex. 25) According to Robinson, the boat's current market 
value was $4,650. (Exs. 25 and 26)^ 

In addition, the Chief Investigator's Office retained 
Charles Balsamo, who owns South Bay Boat Repair, Inc., a boatyard 
and boat repair business on Long Island, to give an estimate of the 
market value of Perrucci's boat. On June 29, 1995 Balsamo 
inspected Perrucci's boat. Balsamo appraised the boat at a current 
market value of $4,360. (Ex. 27) Balsamo stated that when he 
inspected Perrucci's boat on June 29, 1995 he was told by a 
mechanic at Bob's Marine that approximately $1,400 in repair work 
had been put into the boat. Assuming this information was true, 
Balsamo gave Perrucci's boat a 1994 value of approximately $2,900. 
(Ex. 27) 

Perrucci, through counsel, claimed that he did not 
"accept a thing of value" when he purchased the boat for $100 since 
the boat was essentially worthless. Perrucci retained William 
Campbell, a marine surveyor, to report the value of Perrucci's 
boat. After inspecting Perrucci's boat on May 24, 1995, Campbell 
reported that, "After surveying the 1986 Bayliner, I estimated the 
value of the vessel equipped as $1,200 and this is the Salvage 
Value." (Ex. 231(7))" Campbell also reported, 

^ According to Robinson, the 1995 BUC Book, a boat price 
guide, listed the value of Perrucci's boat at between $10,700 and 
$12,200. (Ex. 25) 

M Campbell described the salvage value of the boat as "the 
estimated value of property at the end of its useful life — if it 
is your policy to dispose of property that is still in good 
operating condition, the salvage value can be relatively large. 
However, if your policy is to use property until it is no longer 

13 



I estimate cost of repairs to make this boat 
"ready for sale requiring no additional work 
and normally equipped" to be $10,000 with retail 
high value of $11,200. The value of this vessel 
is $1,200. 

(Ex. 231(7))" 

According to marine surveyor Robinson, Perrucci's boat 
was "cosmetically distressed." (Ex. 25) It appears that some of 
the $10,000 in repairs Campbell claimed were necessary were 
actually cosmetic. For example, Campbell reported that a boat 
cover costing $1,900 was required. (Ex. 231(4)) However, another 
marine surveyor Perrucci retained, William Kaye, did not report 
that a boat cover was necessary. (Ex. 23m(3)) 

William Kaye reported that he inspected Perrucci's boat 
on May 14, 1995. (Ex. 23m(2)) Kaye declared the boat to be 
worthless. (Ex. 23m(2)) Kaye reported that it would take repairs 
totalling $15,000 to recondition the boat. (Ex. 23m(5) and (6))** 
However, Kaye's report appears to have exaggerated the cost of 

usable, its salvage value can be its junk value." (Ex. 231(7)) 
Campbell also asserted that since Perrucci incurred 

approximately $3,507 in expenses in connection with this boat and 
the current value of the boat is $1,200, the boat should have been 
totalled at the time of sale. (Ex. 231(5)) However, the $3,507 
figure cited by Campbell included $493 for transporting the boat 
and $820 for winterizing and storing the boat. (Ex. 231(5)) 
Neither of these items were related to the fair market value of the 
boat. Rather they were normal expenses incurred in connection with 
boat ownership. In addition, the $2,094 in repair expenses 
Campbell listed were incurred in August 1994, after the June 1994 
fire on the boat. (Ex. 23i) As a result, these repairs may not 
have been necessary at the time Perrucci obtained the boat in May 
1994. 

According to the ABOS Marine Blue Book, the list price in 
1986 for Perrucci's boat was $21,295. (Ex. 9) 

14 



repairing Perrucci's boat. For example, Kaye reported that the 
boat's engine should be replaced with a reconditioned engine at an 
approximate cost of $10,865. (Ex. 23m(6)) However, Perrucci's 
marine surveyor, Campbell, recommended that the boat's engine could 
be repaired at an approximate cost of $1,275. (Ex. 231(4)) 

The experts that the Chief Investigator's Office retained 
gave the boat a low value of $2,900, giving credit for a dubious 
claim of essential repairs, and a high value of $4,900 at the time 
of transfer. Each expert considered the overall condition of the 
boat in rendering his opinion. Moreover, both experts considered 
the boat to be operational and seaworthy. (Exs. 25 and 27)" In 
addition, Perrucci's marine surveyor, Campbell, reported that the 
salvage value of Perrucci's boat was $1,200, twelve times more than 
Perrucci paid for the boat. (Ex. 23m(6) and (7)) As a result of 
the investigation, it appears that in May 1994 Perrucci obtained a 
boat from an employer having a collective bargaining agreement with 
Local 177 for substantially less than the fair market value of the 
boat. 

C. Other Items 
Perrucci admitted receiving free services from the 

Local's accountant. Perrucci testified that he received free 
personal tax return preparation from Local 177's accountant, Buddy 
Hecht, during the period from 1979 to 1990. (Ex. 2 at 20, 21) 

" Indeed, Bob's Outboard Marine owner, Maccready, reported in 
his June 1, 1995 declaration that he was getting the boat ready for 
the 1995 summer season. (Ex. 23h) 

15 



Perrucci testified that he was a Trustee on the Local 177 Pension 
Fund and the accountant for the Local was also the accountant for 
the Local 177 Pension Fund. (Ex. 2 at 4, 20) 

In addition to the free personal accounting work, 
Perrucci testified that each year between approximately 1979 and 
1994, the attorney for the Local and the Local 177 Pension Fund, 
Victor Parsonnet, gave Perrucci four season tickets to the Yankees. 
(Ex. 2 at 13-19; Exs. 13 and 14) Perrucci claimed that some of the 
Yankee tickets were distributed to the Local's members. (Ex. 2 at 
19) The tickets were given to Perrucci to use at his discretion. 

Since 1991, Perrucci delegated Ralph Turano ("Turano") to 
distribute the Yankee tickets. Turano was Perrucci's personal 
assistant assigned to the Local's Tom's River office where Turano 
and Perrucci shared space with IBT organizers. (Ex. 22 at 5-7; Ex. 
1 at 66-68)** Turano testified that he distributed the Yankee 
season tickets, which he testified were worth between $5,600 and 
$5,700, to Local 177 members and employees of the Local. (Ex. 22 at 
8, 17) Turano did not retain any records reflecting to whom the 
tickets were given. (Ex. 22 at 18-19) Moreover, there was no 
formal mechanism for the distribution of the tickets. (Ex. 22 at 
19; Ex. 2 at 18-19) The minutes of the Executive Board and general 
membership meetings for the period from January 7, 1990 to 
September 11, 1994 contained no mention of distributing tickets to 
the Local members. (Exs. 15 and 16) 

Turano and Perrucci were the only Local 177 employees 
assigned to the Tom's River office. (Ex. 1 at 66) 

16 



III. ANALYSIS 
By obtaining a boat from an employer for substantially 

less than the fair market value, Perrucci appears to have brought 
reproach upon the IBT, breached his fiduciary duties and violated 
Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and 
(13) of the IBT Constitution. 

The Labor Management Relations Act prohibited a union 
officer from accepting any money or any thing of value from an 
employer. 29 U.S.C. 5186(b)(1).^ Here, Perrucci, while an officer 
of Local 177, took a boat from Eletto Transfer, with whom Local 177 
had a collective bargaining agreement, for substantially less than 

29 U.S.C. $186 provides in relevant part, 
(a) it shall be unlawful for any employer or 

association of employers or any person who 
acts as a labor relations expert, advisor, 
or consultant to an employer or who acts in 
the interest of an employer to pay, lend or 
deliver or agree to pay, lend or deliver, 
any money or any thing of value -
(1) To any representative of his employees who 
are employed in an industry affecting commerce; 
(2) To any labor organization, or any officer 
or employee thereof, which represents, seeks 
to represent, or would admit to membership, any 
of the employees of such employer who are 
employed in an industry affecting commerce. 

* * * 

(b) (1) it shall be unlawful for any person to request, 
demand, receive, or accept or agree to receive or 
accept any payment, loan or delivery of any money of 
thing of value prohibited by subsection (a) of this 
Section. 

17 



the fair market value. The evidence demonstrated that at the time 
of the transfer the fair market value of this boat was between 
$2,900 and $4,900. Even Perrucci's expert, Campbell reported the 
salvage value of the boat to be $1,200, twelve times more than 
Perrucci paid for the boat. As a result, even if Perrucci paid 
$100 for this boat, Perrucci took the boat from an employer for 
substantially less than the fair market value. As a result of the 
transfer of the boat, Perrucci received a benefit of between $2,700 
and $4,800. 

All payments by an employer representative to a union 
representative, except for those statutorily excluded, are 
prohibited under the Labor Management Relations Act. United States 
v. Codv. 722 F. 2d 1052, 1059 (2d Cir. 1983). The exceptions to 
the blanket prohibition on payments from employer representatives 
to union officials included an exception "with respect to the sale 
or purchase of an article or commodity at the prevailing market 
price in the regular course of business." 29 U.S.C. §186(c)(3) 
Here, the transfer of the boat to Perrucci was not done in the 
normal course of Eletto Transfer's business since Eletto Transfer 
was in the trucking business and not in the business of selling 
boats. Moreover, since Perrucci obtained the boat for 
substantially less than the fair market value, the transfer was not 
at the prevailing market price. As a result, this exception is not 
applicable to Perrucci's conduct.^ 

in order to establish a violation of 29 U.S.C. 
§186(b)(l), there is no requirement that the payment or transfer of 
a thing of value to a union official was done for a corrupt 
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In addition, as a Trustee on the Local 177 Pension Fund, 
an employee pension benefit plan, and as a Local 177 officer whose 
members participated in the Local 177 Pension Fund, Perrucci was 
prohibited pursuant to 18 U.S.C. $1954 from accepting any thing of 
value "because of or with intent to be influenced with respect to, 
any of his actions decisions or other duties relating to any 
question or matter concerning such plan . . .." 18 U.S.C. $1954.^ 

purpose. United States v. Ricciardi. 357 F. 2d 91, 99 (2d Cir. 
1966) cert, denied 84 S. Ct. 1464 (1966) (the Court rejected 
defendant's contention that "the prosecution should have to prove 
that the payment or loan to the employee representative was made 
because the recipient was an employee representative, and not for 
some other reason such as personal friendship.") 

^ 18 U.S.C. §1954 provides in relevant part 
Whoever being — 

(1) an administrator, officer, trustee, custodian, 
counsel, agent or employee of any employee welfare 
benefit plan or employee pension benefit plan; or 

* * * 

(3) an officer, counsel, agent or employee of an 
employee organization any of whose members are 
covered by such plan; 

* * * 

receives or agrees to receive or solicits any fee, 
kickback, commission, gift, loan, money, or thing of 
value because of or with intent to be influenced 
with respect to, any of his actions decisions or 
other duties relating to any question or matter 
concerning such plan . . . shall be fined under 
this title or imprisoned not more than three years, 
or both: Provided, That this section shall not 
prohibit the payment to or acceptance by any person 
of bona fide salary, compensation, or other payments 
made for goods or facilities actually furnished or 
for services actually performed in the regular 
course of his duties as such person, administrator, 
officer, trustee, custodian, counsel, agent, or 
employee of such plan, employer, employee 
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In United States v. Romano. 684 F. 2d 1057 (2d Cir. 1982) cert, 
denied. 103 S. Ct. 375 (1982), a Trustee of a union pension fund 
was convicted of violating 18 U.S.C. §1954 for receiving television 
sets from a bank as gifts for opening pension fund accounts at the 
bank. In Romano, the Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit held 
that 

Congress used very broad language to prohibit 
receipt of "any fee, kickback, commission, gift, 
loan, money, or thing of value," rather than just 
kickbacks. Moreover, the statute punishes the 
receipt of any of these things either "because of," 
or "with the intent to be influenced " with respect 
to, any action or decision concerning a pension fund. 
If only corrupt transactions were intended to be 
covered, Congress would not have added the "because 
of" clause, but would have limited the statute to 
those possessing the intent to be influenced. 
In short, the broad language used in the statute reflects 
Congress's intent to reach all fiduciaries who profit 
(other than by their regular compensation) as the result 
of their decisions to invest union pension funds. 

Id. at 1064 (footnote omitted) 
In United States v. Roberto. 801 F. Supp. 946 (D. Conn 1992), a 
Trustee of a union health benefit plan was convicted of violating 
18 U.S.C. 1954 for receiving free remodeling of his basement from 
a contractor who was awarded work on the union health plan 
building. The court held that, 

[ujnder the "because of" prong of section 1954, 
the jury is not required to find that any specific 
action or decision was actually taken in order to 
find the Defendant guilty. . . . Nor is the Government 
required to prove that the Defendant received a gift 
or thing of value in order to influence his acts or 
decisions. . . . Rather, the Government needs only to 

organization, or organization providing benefit 
services to such plan. 
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establish that the Defendant received the gift or thing 
of value " 'because of' his status, which gave him at 
least ostensible authority to exercise influence over 
the" employee welfare benefit plan's decisions. . . . 

Id. at 949 (citations and footnote omitted) 

In the instant case, the boat was given to Perrucci by 
John Eletto, a representative of an employer who participated in 
the Local 177 Pension Fund. Perrucci and John Eletto were both 
Trustees on the Local 177 Pension Fund. Moreover, as Perrucci 
acknowledged, the transfer of the boat was decided during a 
conversation he had with John Eletto about health and welfare 
coverage for the Local 177 members employed by Eletto. (Ex. 2 at 
10) These facts were sufficient to demonstrate that the boat was 
given to Perrucci "because of" his position as a Trustee on the 
Local 177 Pension Fund and as an officer of a labor organization 
whose members were covered by the Local 177 Pension Plan. 

In addition, Perrucci received free tax preparation work 
from the accountant for the Local and the Local 177 Pension Fund 
for approximately eleven years. Furthermore, Perrucci received 
Yankee tickets from the attorney for the Local and the Local's 
funds. Perrucci's receipt of the free tax preparation work and the 
Yankee tickets indicated his willingness to accept gifts for his 
personal use from those doing business with the Local and the 
Local's Pension Fund. 

IV. PROPOSED CHARGES 
Based upon the foregoing, it is recommended that Mario 
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Perrucci be charged as follows: 
A. Charge One 

While an officer of Local 177 and a union Trustee on the 
Local 177 Pension Plan, you brought reproach upon the IBT by 
breaching your fiduciary duties and accepting a thing of value from 
an employer under contract with Local 177 in violation of Article 
II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and (13) of 
the IBT Constitution to wit: 

In or about May 1994, you obtained a 1986 Bayliner 
Bowrider 23-foot boat for no more than $100 from Joseph Eletto 
Transfer, Inc., an employer of Local 177 members. At the time you 
obtained the boat from Joseph Eletto Transfer, the fair market 
value of the boat was, at least, between $2,900 and $4,900. When 
you obtained this boat, you were a Local 177 officer and Local 177 
had a collective bargaining agreement with Joseph Eletto Transfer, 
Inc.. Moreover, at the time you obtained this boat you were a 
Trustee of the Local 177 Pension Plan and employees of Joseph 
Eletto Transfer participated in the Local 177 Pension Plan. By 
taking this boat for substantially less than the fair market value, 
you violated applicable law including, 29 U.S.C. $186(b)(l) and 18 
U.S.C. $1954. 

B. Charge Two 
While an officer of Local 177 and a union Trustee on the 

Local 177 Pension Plan, you brought reproach upon the IBT by 
accepting gifts from service providers to the Local and the Local 
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177 Pension Plan in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and 
Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and (2) and (13) of the IBT 
Constitution to wit: 

While an officer of Local 177 and a Trustee on the Local 
177 Pension Plan, between approximately 1979 and 1990, you accepted 
free tax services from the accountant for Local 177 and the Local 
177 Pension Plan. In addition, each year between approximately 
1979 and 1994, you received free Yankee season tickets from the 
attorney for the Local and the Local 177 Pension Plan. By 
accepting gifts from service providers to the Local 177 Pension 
Plan while a Trustee of the Local 177 Pension Plan and a Local 177 
officer whose members participated in the Local 177 Pension Plan, 
you violated 18 U.S.C. $1954. 
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EXHIBITS TO PRELIMINARY REPORT CONCERNING MARIO PERRUCCI 

1 Sworn Examination of Mario Perrucci dated December 
5, 1994 

2 Sworn Examination of Mario Perrucci dated 
May 10, 1995 

3 Local 177 Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
Joseph Eletto Transfer, Inc. between September 29, 1991 
and August 31, 1994 

4 July 11, 1994 Letter from Mario Perrucci to 
John Eletto 

5 August 3, 1994 Letter from John Eletto to Mario Perrucci 
6 August 15, 1994 Letter from Mario Perrucci to John Eletto 
7 Certified Title information from New Jersey Division of 

Motor Vehicles for boat with Hull # BPIA88SRA686 
8 New York Department of Motor Vehicles registration 

information for boat with Hull % BPIA88SRA686 
9 Excerpts from 1995 ABOS Marine Blue Book for Used Boats 
10 Seven Photos of Boat with New Jersey registration 

NJ4326FX 
11 Coast Guard Incident Report of Tow of Boat with 

Registration NJ4326FX dated June 19, 1994 
12 Boat for Sale Advertisement from the Boat Shopper 

dated April 27, 1995 
13 Form 5500 for 1992 for the Local 177 Pension Plan 
14 Form 5500 for 1993 for the Local 177 Pension Plan 
15 Local 177 Executive Board meeting minutes from January 7, 

1990 to September 11, 1994 
16 Local 177 General Membership meeting minutes from 

January 7, 1990 to September 11, 1994 
17 May 31, 1995 letter from Chief Investigator's Office to 

James Fletcher, Esq. 
24 



James Fletcher reply letter dated June 2, 1995 
Undated, unsigned statement enclosed with Ex. 18 
Sworn examination of Edward T. O'Neill dated June 5, 1995 
Sworn examination of Richard Carunchio dated June 5, 1995 
Sworn examination of Ralph Turano dated June 5, 1995 
Letter from Richard Gilberg dated June 2, 1995 

a. Bill of sale dated March 10, 1994 for boat 
b. N.J.D.M.V. registration for boat 
c. Affidavit of Peter M. Ellis 
d. Perrucci's Homeowner insurance policy 
e. Transportation of boat bill dated May 6, 1994 
f. Coast Guard report dated June 19, 1994 
g. Declaration of Mrs. Perrucci dated June 1, 1995 
h. Declaration of Robert Macready dated June 1, 1995 
i. Repair bill from Bob's Marine dated August 6, 

1994 
j. Winterizing bill from Bob's Marine dated November 

15, 1994 
k. Declaration of Nathaniel K. Charny dated June 1, 

1995 
1. Declaration and survey report of William J. 

Campbell with resume and memos dated June 1, 1995 
1. William Campbell's resume 
2. Campbell Letter dated May 26, 1995 
3. Condition and Evaluation Survey 

Report dated May 24, 1995 
4. Estimated Cost of Repairs 
5. Recap of Perrucci's Boat Expenses 
6. Campbell's Conclusion of Boat's 

Salvage Value 
7. Campbell's Letter dated May 31, 1995 

m. Declaration, resume, survey report, and repair 
estimates by William Kaye dated June 1, 1995 

1. William Kaye's Resume 
2. Kaye's Letter dated May 26, 1995 
3. Survey Report regarding Perrucci's 

Boat 
4. May 25, 1995 Repair Estimate 

to Make Boat Insurable 
5. May 25, 1995 Estimate of Cosmetic 

Repairs 
6. May 25, 1995 Estimate of Cost of 

Repowering Boat 
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Resume of Paul Robinson, Marine boat surveyor 
Condition and Value Appraisal Report of Paul Robinson 
dated June 29, 1995 
Memo of Paul Robinson dated July 6, 1995 
Appraisal report of Charles Balsamo dated July 10, 1995 
Memorandum dated June 2, 1995 re: contact Chief Kavanaugh 
Richard Gilberg, Esq.'s letter dated July 7, 1995 
Sworn examination notice letter to Edward O'Neill dated 
May 19, 1995 
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X 
In re: Mario F. Perrucci, Jr. : 

x 

OPINION AND DECISION OF THE INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 

I. PRIOR PROCEEDINGS 
On July 12, 1995, the Independent Review Board ("IRB") 

forwarded to the International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IBT") 
General Executive Board ("GEB") an investigative report ( " R e p o r t " ) 

alleging that in March 1994 Mario Perrucci ("Perrucci"), an IBT 
Vice President and Local 177 Secretary-Treasurer and Principal 
Officer, had obtained a twenty-four foot boat (with engine) for 
$100 in cash paid to John Eletto, the owner of Joseph Eletto 
Transfer Inc., an employer having a collective bargaining agreement 
with Perrucci's Local and who served as the employer-Trustee for 
the Local 177 Pension Fund for which Perrucci also served as a 
Trustee. The Report stated that two experts retained by the Chief 
Investigator estimated that at the time the boat had a market value 
of approximately $4,500. 

The Report also alleged that, from approximately 1978 until 
1993, Perrucci received without charge assistance with the 
preparation of his personal tax returns from Bernard Hecht, who 
served at the time as the Local 177 (and the Local 177 Pension 
Fund) accountant. 

The Report further alleged that, from approximately 1979 to 
1994, Perrucci annually received as a gift four season tickets to 
New York Yankees home games from a member of the law firm which 
served as counsel to Local 177 (and the Local 177 Pension Fund) 



during that time. The tickets had a cumulative value of 
approximately $56,000. 

Based upon the foregoing allegations, the IRB recommended that 
the GEB charge Perrucci as follows: 

Charge One 
While an officer of Local 177 and a union Trustee on the 

Local 177 Pension Plan, you brought reproach upon the IBT by 
breaching your fiduciary duties and accepting a thing of 
value from an employer under contract with Local 177 in 
violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 
7(b)(1), (2) and (13) of the IBT Constitution to wit: 

In or about May 1994, you obtained a 1986 Bayliner 
Bowrider 23-foot boat for no more than $100 from Joseph Eletto 
Transfer, Inc., an employer of Local 177 members. At the time 
you obtained the boat from Joseph Eletto Transfer, the fair 
market value of the boat was, at least, between $2,900 and 
$4,900. When you obtained this boat, you were a Local 177 
officer and Local 177 had a collective bargaining agreement 
with Joseph Eletto Transfer, Inc. Moreover, at the time you 
obtained this boat, you were a Trustee of the Local 177 
Pension Plan and employees of Joseph Eletto Transfer 
participated in the Local 177 Pension Plan. By taking this 
boat for substantially less than the fair market value, you 
violated applicable law including 29 U.S.C. Section 186(b)(1) 
and 18 U.S.C. Section 1954. 

Charge Two 
While an officer of Local 177 and a union Trustee on the 

Local 177 Pension Plan, you brought reproach upon the IBT by 
accepting gifts from service providers to the Local and the 
Local 177 Pension Plan in violation of Article II, Section 
2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and (2) and (13) of the 
IBT Constitution to wit: 

While an officer of Local 177 and a Trustee on the Local 
177 Pension Plan, between approximately 1979 and 1990, you 
accepted free tax services from the accountant for Local 177 
and the Local 177 Pension Plan. In addition, each year 
between approximately 1979 and 1994, you received free Yankee 
season tickets from the attorney for the Local and the Local 
177 Pension Plan. By accepting gifts from service providers 
to the Local 177 Pension Plan while a Trustee of the Local 177 
Pension Plan and a Local 177 officer whose members 
participated in the Local 177 Pension Plan, you violated 18 
U.S.C. Section 1954. 
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On January 23, 1996, the GEB conducted a hearing to consider 
the Report. The GEB thereafter rendered its decision on April 17, 
1996 (the "Decision") (Exh. A) . It determined that the transfer of 
the boat for $100 "constituted a gift of something of value" to 
Perrucci from the employer-Trustee of the Local 177 Pension Fund, 
and that it was offered to Perrucci "because of his position as a 
union representative and union Trustee on the pension fund." 
(Decision at 3). The GEB also found that the "baseball tickets and 
tax services were things of value given to...Perrucci in his 
capacity as a union official and a Trustee of a benefit fund by 
providers of services to the Local Union and the pension fund... 
because of his position as an official of the union and of the 
benefit plan." (Id. at 3-4). The GEB concluded that Perrucci had 
brought reproach upon the IBT by his violations of the IBT 
Constitution and federal law and imposed a two-year suspension from 
membership and employment with the IBT. (Id. at 4). 

By letter dated June 10, 1996 (Exh. B), the IRB notified the 
GEB that the IRB viewed the penalty of a two-year suspension 
imposed upon Perrucci as inadequate, and remanded the matter to the 
GEB for further consideration. Thereafter, by letter dated October 
8, 1996 (Exh. C), IBT General President Ron Carey advised the IRB 
that the GEB was increasing the penalty imposed upon Perrucci to a 
forty-two month suspension. Once again, however, by letter dated 
October 17, 1996 (Exh. D), the IRB advised that it deemed this 
penalty inadequate and that, as a result, it would hear the matter 
de nPVQ. 

At Perrucci's request, the IRB agreed to consider the matter 
based upon the prior record and supplemental written submissions by 
each party. By letter memorandum dated December 16, 1996, 
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Perrucci's counsel, Eric Tunis, Esq., made a submission on behalf 
of Perrucci (the "Tunis Letter")(Exh. E). The Chief Investigator's 
response thereto was submitted on December 30, 1996 (Exh. F); and 
on January 8, 1997, Mr. Tunis submitted his reply memorandum (Exh. 
G) . 

II. THE FACTS 

A. Perrucci's Background as Local 177 Member and 
principal Officer and IBT Vjpe President 

Perrucci, then a United Parcel Service ("UPS") employee, joined 
Local 177 in September 1966. (10-1 at 4).̂  Local 177 has 
approximately 8,000 members, the majority of whom are UPS workers, 
fid, at 6). 

In November 1977, Perrucci was elected to the Executive Board 
as Secretary-Treasurer of Local 177 as its Principal Officer. He 
served as such from 1978 through 1995. (Tr. 34; 10-1 at 3). 
Perrucci also served as Chairman and Trustee of Local 177's "UPS 
Pension Fund," from approximately 1986 through 1995, and multi-
employer pension fund (the "Local 177 Pension Fund"), from 
approximately 1984 through 1995. (Tr. 34-35; 10-2 at 4). 

Since February 2, 1992, Perrucci has also served as IBT Vice-
President at Large. (10-1 at 5, 7; Tr. 39) . General President 
Carey appointed Perrucci Director of the 175,000 member Small 
Parcel and Package Division and Trustee to the Teamster-UPS 401(k) 
program in approximately March 1992. (10-1 at 5, 7; Tr. 38-39). 
From approximately April 1993 through August 1, 1995, Perrucci also 

i "10" refers to Chief Investigator's Exhibits which 
together with the IRB's investigative report, dated July 12, 
1995, were collectively marked as Charging Party Exhibit 1 at the 
GEB hearing on January 23, 1996. "Tr." refers to the transcript 
of the hearing. "CP" refers to the Exhibits offered by the 
Charging Party at the January 23, 1996 hearing. "Exh." of course 
refers to the Exhibits attached to this Opinion and Decision. 
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served as a Trustee on the Executive Board for Joint Council 73. 
(Tr. 39; 10-1 at 85). 

As an IBT Vice-President Perrucci received a salary of 
approximately $100,000 per year, plus an allowance of $10 per day 
for incidentals. (10-1 at 15). As of December 5, 1994, Local 177 
paid him $203 per week plus automobile gas expenses, made 
contributions to three pension funds on his behalf and bought him 
a 1994 Ford Explorer in approximately April 1994. (Id. at 14-15, 
55). 

It also appears that, going back to 1989, Local 177 had 
provided him successively with a 1990 Cadillac, a 1991 or 1992 
Buick Park Avenue and a Lincoln Mark VIII, with monthly lease 
payments of up to $700 per month. (10-1 at 55-57). 

B. The Boat Purchase Transaction 

1. Relationship of Local 177 (and Joseph Eletto 
Transfer, Inc.) and Perrucci 

Joseph Eletto Transfer Inc. ("Eletto Transfer") is a trucking 
company delivering home furniture for the Macy's Department Stores 
("Macy's") warehouse in Raritan, New Jersey. (IO-3 at 3; 10-22 
at 4). Local 177 has represented the Bamberger's and Macy's drivers 
since 1939, although Macy's has from time to time contracted with 
other truckers to provide such service. (10-2 at 6-7; 10-22 
at 4-5). In 1991, Eletto Transfer underbid Macy's former carrier, 
Tri-Power Trucking ("Tri-Power") (with whom Local 177 then had a 
collective bargaining agreement), for the delivery contract at the 
Raritan warehouse. (Tr. 137; IO-2 at 8; 10-22 at 8). 

When Eletto Transfer first obtained this contract, its owner, 
Joseph Eletto, wanted to use drivers from IBT Local 875 in 
Elmhurst, Queens, instead of Local 177 members employed by Tri-
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Power. (Tr. 139; 10-2 at 8). Perrucci, on behalf of Local 177, 
challenged Local 875's jurisdiction over the Raritan warehouse 
before the IBT Eastern Conference in the early part of 1992 after 
the new GEB (and Perrucci as a member thereof) took office. 
(Tr. 140; 10-2 at 8-9). Shortly thereafter, Perrucci, Joseph 
Eletto and his son, John Eletto, negotiated the first collective 
bargaining agreement between Eletto Transfer and Local 177 (the 
"1992 Collective Bargaining Agreement"). (Tr. 39, 44, 47; IO-2 
at 9). Perrucci initially acted as the Local's business agent for 
Eletto Transfer. (10-2 at 15). However, Perrucci, once elected an 
IBT National Vice President in 1991, delegated most of his Local 
177 business agent duties to other officers and agents of the Local 
(10-1 at 7). 

After Eletto Transfer entered into the 1992 Collective 
Bargaining Agreement with Local 177, Joseph Eletto served as the 
sole employer-Trustee for the Local 177 Pension Fund, for which 
Perrucci served as a union-Trustee. (Tr. 45, 95; 10-13; 10-14; 
10-20 at 38). Under the 1992 Collective Bargaining Agreement, 
Eletto Transfer made a maximum weekly contribution of $32 per 
employee to the Local 177 Pension Fund. (10-20 at 22; 10-29 at 1). 
Tri-Power Trucking, Eletto Transfer's predecessor, had paid $40 per 
week per employee to the Local 177 Pension Fund.^ (Id.). 

Although Perrucci's relationship with Joseph Eletto and Eletto 
Transfer started out "stormy," once the 1992 Collective Bargaining 

^ Edward O'Neill testified at the hearing that although 
Tri-Power contributed more money weekly to the Local 177 Pension 
Fund, Eletto Transfer made its contribution regardless of whether 
the employee worked, meaning there was no penalty for vacation or 
sick time. (Tr. 220-21). 
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Agreement was in place, they maintained an "okay" business 
relationship. (10-2 at 10). Perrucci explained, "I got to be able 
to know where he was coming from, and "[w]e could settle things." 
(Id. at 10). According to Perrucci, Joseph Eletto "was not one to 
want to go to arbitration on everything, and I was one that said 
look, you can't let these things happen, Joe. We have to settle 
them. You have to pay, and we would settle many things.(Id.). 
Perrucci attended Joseph Eletto's wake after his December 1993 
death; and also sent flowers on behalf of Local 177. (Id.). 

After Joseph Eletto's death, his son John assumed control of 
Eletto Transfer and also succeeded his father as employer-Trustee 
of the Local 177 Pension Fund.** (Tr. 48). Perrucci first met John 
Eletto ("Eletto") in September 1991 when Eletto Transfer obtained 
the Macy's Raritan warehouse contract(Tr. 47), and, as noted, 
Perrucci had negotiated with Eletto in connection with the 1992 
Collective Bargaining Agreement. (Id.). Perrucci and Eletto shared 
a cordial business relationship. (Tr. 48, 94). Eletto described 
Perrucci as a friend. (10-19). 

2. The March 1994 Boat Transaction 
In March 1994, at Perrucci's request, Eletto met him to 

discuss improved health care benefits for Eletto Transfer's Local 
177 employees and other issues. (Tr. 49-50, 97) . At the time, 
Eletto Transfer was supplying such benefits to its Local 177 

^ Only one dispute between Local 177 and Eletto Transfer 
ever went to arbitration. (Tr. 46). 

" Perrucci testified at the January 23, 1996 hearing that 
John Eletto voluntarily abdicated his Trustee position in 
November 1995 because of the IRB proceedings against Perrucci. 
(Tr. 48). 
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employees through the Local 875 health plan, which the Local 177 
members had found inferior. (10-2 at 10; 10-20 at 25-26; Ex. B at 
3) . 

Perrucci has stated that after they discussed health and 
welfare issues at the March 1994 meeting, he asked Eletto how his 
mother was doing since the passing of her husband. (Tr. 51; IO-2 at 
11; Ex. B at 3). According to Perrucci, Eletto said "he was in the 
process of liquidating his father's estate and he had some toys of 
his father's that he had to get rid of," including an eight-year-
old boat. (Tr. 51; 10-2 at 11). Perrucci told Eletto that he had 
lived on the water for ten years or so and always thought about 
buying a boat. (Tr. 52; 10-2 at 11). Eletto offered to give 
Perrucci the boat, but Perrucci insisted that he had to pay for it, 
and they agreed on a price of $100 which Perrucci then paid in cash 
to Eletto. (Tr. 52; 10-2 at 11-12). Perrucci provided the Chief 
Investigator with a Bill of Sale, dated March 10, 1994, reflecting 
sale of a 1986 Bayliner, Model 2450 Ciera Bowrider, sold in "as is" 
condition by Eletto for $100. (I0-23A). This bill of sale 
contains a handwritten notation which indicates "paid in full" and 
"mailed to Local 177, Attn: Mario Perrucci, 38 Main Street, Toms 
River, N.J." (Id.) This is the address for Local 177's Toms 
River, New Jersey, office. (10-22 at 5). 

By letter dated May 31, 1995, the Chief Investigator's office 
requested information from Eletto concerning the circumstances of 
the boat sale. (10-17). By letter dated June 2, 1995, Eletto's 
attorney, James Fletcher, responded to the request enclosing an 
unsigned, undated statement which provides, in relevant part: 
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On December 11, 1993, my father...knew that within twenty-four 
hours he would be gone...[H]e spoke to me about...the things 
he wanted me to complete for him....[M]y father's last 
sentence to me was get rid of that F boat. 
At a lunch with Mario, who got to know my father well, I was 
telling him this story. Mario inquired about the boat and I 
said I would not sell the boat to a friend, the boat was a 
disaster. I told him to take this boat in memory of my 
father. He refused and said he could not take it. We made a 
deal, that he would buy the boat for $100.00, he would ship it 
to Tom's [sic] River and he would make whatever repairs 
necessary. I made Mario swear that no matter what the boat 
cost him, it would not effect [sic] our friendship. 

(10-18; 10-19). 

3. Negotiations Concerning Extension and 
Improvement of the 1992 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement About the Time of the Boat Purchase 

At the March 1994 meeting, Perrucci and Eletto, in 
anticipation of the expiration of the 1992 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement on August 31, 1994, also addressed the matter of a new 
collective bargaining agreement. (Tr. 232; 10-2 at 11). According 
to Perrucci, Eletto had approached him to negotiate an extension of 
the terms of the 1992 Collective Bargaining Agreement until such 
time as Eletto Transfer knew it would be retained as the carrier 
for Macy's, which had filed for bankruptcy. (Tr. 42-43). Perrucci. 
stated that "[fjormal negotiations on the contract were not at that 
[March 1994] meeting.... [T]hey were still up the road a little bit 
simply because [Eletto]...had not received any word from Macy's at 
that time [as to] whether he was going to be retained as its 
carrier." (Tr. 124). 

In August 1994, Eletto and Perrucci agreed to extend the Local 
177 1992 Collective Bargaining Agreement until February 28, 1995, 
because a projected merger between Macy's and Federated Department 
Stores left Eletto Transfer's status with Macy's uncertain. (10-2 
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at 13-4; Tr. 41, 229-30; IO-4 at 6). Perrucci granted the 
extension with the stipulation that Eletto Transfer (i) agree to 
give its Local 177 employees a four percent pay increase beginning 
September 1, 1994 and (ii) apply the terms of the new agreement, 
whenever negotiated, retroactively to September 1, 1994. (Tr. 40, 
231; 10-2 at 14; 10-6). 

A few months before the August 1994 expiration and extension 
of the 1992 Collective Bargaining Agreement, Eletto and Perrucci 
negotiated an improved health plan. (Tr. 228-29; 10-20 at 26). 
O'Neill, the Eletto Transfer Shop Steward, testified the Local 177 
members accepted Eletto's extension request because of the wage 
increase and improved health benefits, although they disliked 
extending collective bargaining agreements. (Tr. 233). 

Perrucci and O'Neill began negotiating the new agreement in 
February 1995 and concluded the negotiations in July or August 
1995. (Tr. 43-44). It appears that the new agreement runs through 
1997. (Tr. 39). 

4. The Boat's Value 
The boat in question has a 260 horsepower Volvo 

inboard/outboard engine and is known as a 1986 Bayliner Ciera 
Sportcruiser, class 2450. (I0-23L). The boat has an actual length 
of twenty-three feet, eight inches, which explains references to it 
as 23 and 24 feet. The boat has no cabin but instead has an open 
bow with seats that go around the bow. (Tr. 65). In addition to 
the $100 he paid for the boat, Perrucci stated that he has spent 
$2,500 to $3,000 on repairs to the boat. (Tr. 136). Perrucci paid 
approximately $500 to ship the boat from Long Island, New York, to 
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his home in Southern New Jersey since the boat did not come with a 
trailer. (Tr. 66; 10-2 at 12; 10-23). 

Perrucci's primary argument is that he did not "accept a thing 
of value" when he purchased the boat for $100 since the boat was 
virtually worthless. 

The market value of Perrucci's boat at the time of purchase 
has been disputed in this proceeding. A chart setting forth the 
various expert and guidebook estimates of the market value of 
Perrucci's boat has been provided by the Chief Investigator and is 
annexed hereto as Exhibit H. 

The 1995 edition of the Marine Blue Book indicated the model 
2450 Ciera Sportcruiser, with a 260 Volvo engine, had a 1986 list 
price of $21,295. (10-9). The Marine Blue Book reported a 1995 
trade-in value of between $8,518 and $10,435. (Id.) A 1995 used 
boat price guide reported Perrucci's boat had a trade-in value of 
between $9,800 and $11,200. (CP-12; 10-23(L) at 2). In addition, 
the April 27, 1995 edition of The Boat Shopper, a bi-weekly new and 
used boat advertisement magazine, offered Perrucci's type of boat 
with a smaller engine for $10,900.^ (10-12). 

Perrucci retained William Campbell, a marine surveyor, to 
opine on the value of Perrucci's boat. After inspecting Perrucci's 
boat on May 24, 1995, Campbell "estimated the value of the vessel 
equipped as $1,200 and this is the salvage value." (I0-23L(7)). 

The advertisement actually listed a 1986 24-foot 
Bayliner "Bowrider". (10-12). According to the Marine Blue 
Book, Bayliner did not make the Bowrider in a 23- or 24-foot 
model although the Sportcruiser did come in that length. (10-9). 
As such, the advertisement probably referred to a Bayliner 
Sportcruiser. Other persons, including one of Perrucci's 
experts, have made the same mistake. (I0-23M(2)). 
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Furthermore, Campbell stated that it would take $10,000 in repairs 
to bring Perrucci's boat "up to BUC condition 3." (IO-23L(7)). 
Campbell described the salvage value of the boat as "the estimated 
value of property at the end of its useful life" (I0-23L(7)). 
Furthermore, Campbell stated that it would take $10,000 in repairs 
to bring Perrucci's boat "up to BUC condition 3." The BUC 
"Condition and Equipment Scale" sets forth a used boat rating 
system, based upon a boat's condition and equipment, to calculate 
what percentage should be added or subtracted from the published 
trade-in prices to establish market value. (Tr. 157-58; CP-12). 
The so-called "BUC Scale", identified as an accepted standard of 
pricing, has a range of 1 through 6, with condition 1 being 
"excellent," described as "usually better than factory new - and 
loaded with extras" and indicates the normal BUC or Marine Blue 
Book price should be increased by 15% to 25%. (CP-12). Condition 
6 is "Restorable," meaning "enough of hull and engine exists to 
restore the boat to usable condition," and suggests subtracting 
50%-80% of the Marine Blue Book or BUC price. (Id.). Condition 3 
is often called "BUC Condition" meaning "ready for sale requiring no 
additional work and normally equipped for her size." (Id.). For 
condition 3, there is no price adjustment necessary. 

Campbell also estimated that approximately one year before 
Perrucci purchased the boat, it had a value of negative $2,300 
taking into account the $3,507 in boat expenses, repair costs and 
costs of winterizing and storing Perrucci had since incurred. (IO-
23L(6)). As such, Campbell concluded the "boat should have been 
totaled at the time of sale and the $100 offer was a gift." (IdL). 
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Perrucci also retained William Kaye to survey and inspect the 
boat. (I0-23M). After Kaye reportedly inspected Perrucci's boat 
on May 14, 1995, he too declared the boat had a "negative value." 
(I0-23M(2) at 2). According to Kaye, it would take repairs 
totaling $9,227 to recondition the boat and make repairs necessary 
to operate the boat and obtain insurance. (IO-23M(4) & (5)). 
However, this figure includes $4,840 in cosmetic repairs "to make 
the boat attractive enough to encourage buyers." (I0-23M(5)). 
Kaye did not assign a value to the boat as of the date of purchase. 
Neither of Perrucci's surveyors actually operated the boat or 
started the engine during their respective inspections. (Tr. 283; 
I0-23M). 

The Chief Investigator's Office hired Paul Robinson, an 
accredited marine surveyor, to inspect Perrucci's boat and evaluate 
its market value. Robinson has previously testified in state court 
on at least two occasions as an expert in the field of boat 
appraisals. (10-24). On June 29, 1995 Robinson inspected 
Perrucci's boat and found it "to be in fair overall condition," 
though "cosmetically distressed." (10-25 at 3). Furthermore, 
Robinson determined the boat appeared to be "serviceable and 
apparently seaworthy." (Id.). He estimated that the market value 
of the boat in May 1994 would have been $4,900. (10-26). 
According to Robinson the boat's market value as of June 29, 1995 
was $4,650 due to depreciation. (Id.). 

The Chief Investigator's Office also retained Charles Balsamo, 
who owns a boatyard and boat repair business on Long Island, to 
estimate the market value of Perrucci's boat. (10-27). On June 
29, 1995 Balsamo inspected Perrucci's boat and found it had a 
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current market value of $4,360. (Id.). Balsamo stated that when he 
inspected Perrucci's boat, the boat yard manager told Balsamo that 
he made approximately $1,400 in repairs to the boat's motor. (Id.). 
Balsamo reported that if those repairs were necessary, the boat 
would have previously had a value of approximately $2,900 when 
purchased. (Id.). 

Marine surveyor Peter Hartoft testified at the hearing on 
behalf of the IBT concerning the value of Perrucci's boat.*' (Tr. 
145). Hartoft has personally conducted approximately four hundred 
boat surveys per year, and in the past he had surveyed Bayliners of 
different sizes including that of Perrucci's boat. (Tr. 147). 
Hartoft was able to evaluate the boat after reviewing pictures and 
the four other surveyors' reports. (Tr. 146-48). 

Hartoft testified that the price of $9,800 to $11,200 for a 
boat like Perrucci's set forth in the BUC guide was for a boat in 
BUC condition 3. (Tr. 154-55). Hartoft concluded that BUC 
condition 5, defined as "substantial yard work required and devoid 
of extras," best described Perrucci's boat. (Tr. 157-58). After 
applying the maximum 50% price reduction allowed by BUC condition 
5, Hartoft concluded Perrucci's boat had a retail low value of 
$4,900 and retail high value of $5,600 when purchased. (Tr. 158). 
Hartoft rejected BUC condition 6 because it implied the boat "was 
not in useful condition...and [his] understanding was that when the 

At the hearing, counsel for the IBT explained they were 
unable to make contact with one of the appraisers originally used 
by the Chief Investigator in order to have him testify. (Tr. 
179). The other appraiser could not testify because of his 
father's deteriorating health. (Id.). Their reports were placed 
in the record. The IBT retained Hartoft, who testified. (Id. at 
180). 
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boat was bought it was in usable condition."^ (Id.). He further 
testified that the 80% price reduction allowed by BUC condition 6 
equalled a price range of $1,960 to $2,240, which did not fit 
Perrucci's boat. (Id.) 

Hartoft said that after reviewing the Campbell and Kaye 
reports, and "discounting cosmetics and nice things to do, there is 
somewhere between $1,100 and $1,700 worth of work that might have 
to be done to [do] what [Hartoft] would call make the boat really 
seaworthy and some of that is maybe not necessary." (Tr. 171). Of 
the over $10,000 in repairs recommended by Campbell, Hartoft said 
only about $1,250 of repairs were essential." (Tr. 351-58; CP-13). 
He explained that Perrucci's surveyors considered the boat scrap 
because they assessed value only after subtracting the cost of 
trying to create a perfectly maintained boat, with new equipment, 
which Hartoft said was not realistic. (Tr. 173, 379-81). 
According to Hartoft, Perrucci's surveyors did not appraise on the 
basis of the BUC scale with the intent of making the boat 
operational. (Tr. 377-79). 

In its April 17, 1996, decision the GEB did not credit the 
expert testimony offered by Perrucci, that the boat was worthless 
when Perrucci acquired it. Rather, the GEB found "that the boat 

Perrucci's claim that the boat was inoperable at the 
time he purchased it, as evidenced by the engine breakdown, is 
not logical. (See Tunis Letter at 4). Even before the June 19, 
1994 boating trip when the engine overheated, Perrucci had 
operated the boat for ten minutes without incident. (Tr. 70-71). 
Further, had Perrucci bothered to have a mechanic inspect the 
boat before June 19, 1994, he might have discovered the engine 
problems and avoided the whole incident. 

^ CP-13 sets forth which repairs of those recommended by 
Campbell Hartoft deemed necessary. 
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was worth significantly more than the $100 [Perrucci] paid for it." 
(Decision at 3). 

C. The Free Tax Return Assistance 
and Yankees Tickets from Local 177 
and Pension Fund Service Providers 

1. Taxes 
Perrucci admitted he received free personal tax return 

preparation assistance from Bernard "Buddy" Hecht, the accountant 
for Local 177 and the Local 177 Pension Fund from 1979 through 
1993. (Tr. 91; 10-2 at 20-121; 10-21 at 8-9). Perrucci had hired 
Hecht to do Local 177's accounting when Perrucci took over the 
Local in 1978. (Tr. 109-10). Perrucci claims that Hecht, at some 
point in 1979, 1980 or 1981, "let the board members know that if 
they wanted assistance with their taxes, he would assist" them. 
(Tr. 88). Perrucci believes all seven of Local 177's board members 
and business agents took advantage of Hecht's offer for free 
services. (Tr. 88-89). Perrucci had the power to determine if 
Hecht was hired by the Local and its pension funds. 

Perrucci testified he used Hecht's free services most of the 
years Hecht worked for Local 177 and the Local 177 Pension Fund. 
(Tr. 90-92). For each year Perrucci received this assistance, 
Hecht spent one to two hours preparing Perrucci's tax returns. 
(Tr. 89). According to Richard Carunchio, a Trustee of Local 177 
since 1978, Hecht gave Carunchio the same free service from 1978 
until 1993 when Hecht stopped working for Local 177. (10-21 at 4, 
8-9). Carunchio testified on June 5, 1995 that in the last two 
years he paid Hecht $150 per year for the same services. (Id. at 
9) . 
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2. Yankees Baseball Tickets 
Perrucci testified that each year from 1979 to 1994, Attorney 

Albert Parsonnet ("Parsonnet") gave Perrucci four season tickets to 
the New York Yankees home games. (10-2 at 18; Tr. 75). According 
to Perrucci, Parsonnet represented Local 177 in grievances and 
arbitrations from January 1, 1978 until Perrucci left office on 
December 31, 1995. (Tr. 76). In addition, Parsonnet provided 
legal services to the Local 177 Pension Fund and Local 177 UPS Fund 
for which Perrucci served as Trustee, as well as the Parcel 
Delivery Service Fund, another single employer pension fund within 
the Local. (Tr. 76-77). Parsonnet also provided legal services to 
the Local 177 Health and Welfare Fund for the years it existed, 
approximately 1985 through 1990. (Tr. 77; IO-2 at 32-34). 

According to information provided by David W. Sussman, 
Executive Vice President and General Counsel for the New York 
Yankees, the cumulative value of the tickets provided by Parsonnet 
totaled $56,052. (CP-10; Tr. 81-83). Perrucci testified that the 
Yankees sent the tickets together with an invoice to Perrucci at 
Local 177, and he would forward the invoice to Parsonnet. (Tr. 78, 
80, 105). Perrucci said Local 177 did not pay for the tickets. 
(Tr. 81). 

According to Perrucci, the "tickets were given on a first-
come, first asking basis to the members." (Tr. 85). He testified 
he distributed the tickets to Local 177 members through the 
business agents and by making announcements at union meetings to 
see Ralph Turano, Perrucci's Administrative Assistant, who would 
distribute them. (Tr. 85-86; 10-1 at 66-68). Perrucci did on 
occasion use the tickets himself, which he described as "good 
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seats." (Tr. 79, 85). Perrucci also testified that when he used 
the tickets, most of the time he took fellow Local 177 members 
along and once invited an employer. (Tr. 84). 

Turano testified at his June 5, 1995 examination that for the 
last three years he had responsibility for distributing the 
tickets. (10-22 at 18). According to Turano, Perrucci would raise 
the issue of the tickets at union meetings at the beginning of the 
baseball season and tell members to see Turano. (10-22 at 18). 
Turano did not retain any records reflecting to whom the tickets 
were given. (10-22 at 18). Perrucci likewise testified that no 
record was kept reflecting ticket distribution. (Tr. 86, 106). 
Furthermore, there was no formal mechanism, policy or committee 
established for ticket distribution. (Tr. 87; 10-22 at 18-19). 

O'Neill recalled being offered Yankees tickets at Local 177 
meetings in the early 1980's. (Tr. 234; 10-20 at 39). O'Neill 
said he called Turano about getting tickets and also attended one 
game with Perrucci. (Tr. 234; 10-20 at 40-41). However, O'Neill 
testified at the January 23, 1996 hearing that he found out only 
recently that the "union lawyer" had purchased the tickets. (Tr. 
242). Prior to that, he assumed Local 177 bought them. (Tr. 242-
43; 10-20 at 39). Carunchio testified "Mario [Perrucci] used to 
get [Yankee] baseball tickets for years" and "I think they come 
from Vic Parsonnet or Parsonnet's firm, I think." (10-21 at 27). 
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III. FINDING 

A. Charge One 
Perrucci Violated the IBT Constitution and Breached his 
Fiduciary Duties by Reason of the Boat Transaction 

Article XIX, Section 7(b)(13), of the IBT Constitution 
prohibits union members and officers from "[ajccepting money or 
other things of value from any employer or any agent of any 
employer, in violation of applicable law." The Labor Management 
Relations Act, codified as 29 U.S.C. § 186, similarly prohibits a 
union officer from accepting any thing of value from an employer. 

29 U.S.C. Section 186 provides in relevant part: 
(a) it shall be unlawful for any employer or 

association of employers or any person who acts as 
a labor relations expert, advisor, or consultant to 
an employer or who acts in the interest of an 
employer to pay, lend or deliver or agree to pay, 
lend or deliver, any money or any thing of value -
(1) To any representative of his employees who are 
employed in an industry affecting commerce; 
(2) To any labor organization, or any officer or 
employee thereof, which represents, seeks to 
represent, or would admit to membership, any of the 
employees of such employer who are employed in an 
industry affecting commerce. 

* * * 

(b) it shall be unlawful for any person to request, 
demand, receive, or accept or agree to receive or 
accept any payment, loan or delivery of any money 
or thing of value prohibited by subsection (a) of 
this Section. 

The "purchase of an article or commodity at the prevailing market 
price in the regular course of business" is exempt from the 
statute's prohibition against payments by employers to union 
officials. 29 U.S.C. § 186(c)(3). In order to establish a 
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violation of 29 U.S.C. § 186(b)(1), it is not required that the 
payment or transfer of a thing of value to a union official was 
done with a corrupt purpose. See United States v. Ricciardi, 357 
F.2d 91, 99 (2d. Cir. 1966), cert, denied, 84 S. Ct. 1464 (1966). 

Here it is undisputed that Perrucci purchased the boat from an 
employer of Local 177 members while Perrucci served as an officer 
of the Local. Our review of the record of the hearing leads us to 
conclude, as did the GEB, that Perrucci paid substantially less 
than market value for the boat. 

Perrucci argues that his surveyors gave the boat a zero or 
negative value. However, as Hartoft explained, Campbell and Kaye 
calculated whether it paid to restore the boat to perfect condition 
and equip it with extras, by comparing the costs associated with 
realizing that objective against the highest retail value the boat 
could bear on the used boat market. As Hartoft testified, this is 
not a realistic approach when seeking to appraise value and 
seaworthiness. (Tr. 173, 379-81). 

Logic also compels the conclusion that Perrucci, when he paid 
$100 for the boat, believed he was paying less than market value 
for a boat he had never seen and had not had appraised. Had he 
wanted the boat, but only at a fair market value, he should have 
had a qualified appraisal done, yielding a price he would have 
paid. Such a transaction would have been unassailable. It is 
true, as Perrucci states, that the transaction turned into an 
economic disaster for him; but it is a disaster for which he has no 
one but himself to blame, and of course it never entered his mind 
when he purchased it that he was buying a "disaster." 
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Moreover, Perrucci's conduct after he purchased the boat 
contradicts the notion that the boat had no value. First, he spent 
$500 to ship it to his home in New Jersey. Then he took his six-
month-old grandchild and three other persons into the Atlantic 
Ocean, sailing without first consulting with a mechanic to ensure 
its safety, leading to the unfortunate incident of an engine fire 
which necessitated a tow from the Coast Guard (who placed a value 
of $10,000 on Perrucci's boat). Then Perrucci spent an additional 
$3,000 for boat repairs and approximately $1,200 in winterizing 
costs over the next two seasons. (Tr. 72-74, 136). These are 
investments he surely would not have made if the boat only had a 
$100 value. 

Accordingly, the boat clearly had a value to Perrucci in 
excess of the $100 he paid for it. Thus, Perrucci violated 18 
U.S.C. § 186(b)(1) by accepting a thing of value from an employer 
while a union officer in violation of federal law. Moreover, it 
appears that Perrucci violated 18 U.S.C. Section 1954̂  in that the 

^ 18 U.S.C. § 1954 provides in relevant part 
Whoever being — 

(1) an administrator, officer, trustee, 
custodian, counsel, agent or employee of any 
employee welfare benefit plan or employee pension 
benefit plan; or 

* * * 

(3) an officer, counsel, agent, or employee of an 
employee organization any of whose members are 
covered by such plan; 

* * * 

receives or agrees to receive or solicits any fee, 
kickback, commission, gift, loan, money, or thing 
of value because of or with intent to be 

(continued...) 
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reason the boat was offered to Perrucci was because of his position 
as a union representative and union Trustee on the pension fund. 
As with 18 U.S.C. § 186(b)(1), a corrupt intent on the part of the 
benefit recipient is not a prerequisite to a violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1954. Sag United States v. Romano. 684 F.2d 1057 (2d Cir. 1982), 
cert, denied, 103 S. Ct. 375 (1982); United States v. Roberto, 801 
F. Supp. 946 (D. Conn. 1992). It is only necessary to show the 
pension plan Trustee received the benefit "because of" his union 
status. 

Under all the circumstances, it can be reasonably inferred 
that Eletto gave Perrucci the boat "because of" his position as 
Local 177 Pension Fund Trustee, Local officer and business agent to 
Eletto Transfer, positions which Eletto knew offered Perrucci the 
ability, if he wished to exercise it, to influence negotiations 
between Local 177 and Eletto Transfer, even though it does not 
appear to have done so. Thus, Perrucci violated the IBT 
Constitution as charged by bringing reproach upon the IBT. 

B. Charge Two 
Perrucci Violated the IBT Constitution and Breached His 
Fiduciary Duties by Accepting Free Accounting Services 
and Baseball Tickets From Service Providers to Local 177 
and Its Pension Fund 

Perrucci conceded that as soon as he became Secretary-
Treasurer of the Local in 1978 and hired Hecht as the accountant 

^(...continued) 
influenced with respect to, any of his actions, 
decisions or other duties relating to any question 
or matter concerning such plan . . . shall be 
fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 
three years, or both. 

- 22 -



for the Local and its Pension Funds, Hecht offered to assist in 
preparation of Perrucci's tax returns. (Tr. 178). Perrucci 
admitted he took advantage of this assistance for most of the years 
from 1978 to 1993, while at the same time he continued to use Hecht 
as the accountant for Local 177 and its pension funds. (Tr. 90-
92). Perrucci dismisses this as a technical violation. We find 
otherwise. 

Similarly, Perrucci testified that the Parsonnet law firm 
began buying and sending to Perrucci four season tickets to the New 
York Yankees home games in 1979, a year after Perrucci assumed 
Local 177 office and hired the Parsonnet firm to represent the 
Local and three of its pension funds. (Tr. 75-77) From 1979 to 
1994, this cost the Parsonnet law firm approximately $56,000. That 
Perrucci in some arbitrary manner may have decided to distribute 
some of the Yankees tickets to other union members is of no 
consequence.^ His ability to give out gifts to members certainly 
strengthened his political position and was a benefit to him that 
he received from a Local and fund service provider he selected and 
controlled. 

By accepting Yankees tickets and tax return help respectively 
from the lawyer and accountant who served the Local and its pension 
funds, Perrucci breached his fiduciary duties and violated 18 
U.S.C. § 1954. Thus, Perrucci by his conduct brought reproach upon 
the Union in violation of the IBT Constitution as charged. 

Although Turano, Carunchio and O'Neill testified that 
Perrucci made the Yankee tickets available to Local 177 members, 
there is no documentation to support this claim. In any event, 
even if he did, it is of no moment as regards the charges. 
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C. Sanctions Imposed 
Turning to the matter of sanctions, we determine that Perrucci 

may not hereafter hold any position as an officer in the IBT or any 
of its affiliates, or obtain employment, consulting or other work 
with the IBT or any IBT-affiliated entity. 

In the past, where there have been transgressions by Union 
officers that had organized crime implications or that pervasively 
deprived the Union membership of its rights, we have imposed a 
penalty of permanent expulsion from the IBT. While Perrucci's 
conduct did not involve organized crime activity or reflect a 
pervasive violation of the rights of the membership, and 
notwithstanding that there has been no finding that Perrucci's 
conduct influenced his negotiations with Eletto, we nonetheless 
regard Perrucci's misconduct as serious enough to warrant the 
additional sanction of suspension of his IBT membership for ten 
years. 

We are not unmindful of the services Perrucci has furnished 
the Union members over the years. Nonetheless, his wrongdoing 
cannot be tolerated in a senior officer in the IBT. 

Members of the 
Independent Review Board 

Frederick B. Lacey 

William H. Webster 
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